
 
 

Lancashire Fire & Rescue Service Headquarters, Garstang Road, Fulw ood, Preston PR2 3LH  
Sw itchboard: 01772 862545 Democratic Services: 01772 866720 

General Enquiries: enquiries@lancsfirerescue.org.uk 

Lancashire Combined Fire Authority 
Audit Committee 
 

Tuesday, 28 November 2023 in Main Conference Room, Service 
Headquarters, Fulwood commencing at 10.00 am. 
 
If you have any queries regarding the agenda papers or require any further information, please 

initially contact Diane Brooks on telephone number Preston (01772) 866720 and she will be 
pleased to assist. 

 

Agenda 
 
Part 1 (open to press and public) 

 
Chairman's Announcement – Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 2014 

Any persons present at the meeting may photograph, film or record the proceedings, during the 
public part of the agenda.  Any member of the press and public who objects to being 

photographed, filmed or recorded should let it be known to the Chairman who will then instruct 
that those persons are not photographed, filmed or recorded. 

 
1.   Apologies for Absence  

 
2.   Disclosure of Pecuniary and Non-Pecuniary Interests  

 

Members are asked to consider any pecuniary and non-pecuniary interests they 
may have to disclose to the meeting in relation to matters under consideration on 
the agenda. 

 
3.   Minutes of the Previous Meeting (Pages 1 - 10) 

 
4.   External Audit - Addendum to the Annual Audit Plan (Pages 11 - 18) 

 

5.   External Audit - Audit Findings Report (Pages 19 - 60) 

 

6.   External Audit - Letter of Representation (Pages 61 - 68) 

 
7.   External Audit Fees (Pages 69 - 74) 

 
8.   Internal Audit - Monitoring Report (Pages 75 - 82) 

 
9.   Date of Next Meeting  

 

The next scheduled meeting of the Committee has been agreed for 10:00 hours 
on 28 March 2024 in the Main Conference Room, Service Headquarters, 

Fulwood. 
 
Further meetings are: scheduled for 25 July 2024 and 26 September 2024 

 proposed for 28 November 2024 
 

Public Document Pack



2 
 

10.   Urgent Business  
 

An item of business may only be considered under this heading where, by reason 

of special circumstances to be recorded in the Minutes, the Chairman of the 
meeting is of the opinion that the item should be considered as a matter of 

urgency.  Wherever possible, the Clerk should be given advance warning of any 
Member’s intention to raise a matter under this heading. 
 

11.   Exclusion of Press and Public  
 

The Committee is asked to consider whether, under Section 100A(4) of the Local 
Government Act 1972, they consider that the public should be excluded from the 
meeting during consideration of the following items of business on the grounds 

that there would be a likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in the 
appropriate paragraph of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 

1972, indicated under the heading to the item. 
 

PART 2  

 
 
12.   Urgent Business (Part 2)  

 

An item of business may only be considered under this heading where, by reason 

of special circumstances to be recorded in the Minutes, the Chairman of the 
meeting is of the opinion that the item should be considered as a matter of 

urgency.  Wherever possible, the Clerk should be given advance warning of any 
Member’s intention to raise a matter under this heading. 
 

 



Lancashire Combined Fire Authority 
Audit Committee 
 

Tuesday, 25 July 2023, at 10.00 am in the Main Conference Room, 
Service Headquarters, Fulwood. 
 

Minutes 
 

Present:  

  

Councillors 

 

 

J Shedwick (Chair)  

N Hennessy (Vice-Chair)  

S Clarke  

M Dad  

F Jackson  

J Singleton  

 
Officers 

 

S Brown, Director of Corporate Services (LFRS) 

J Meadows, Head of Finance (LFRS) 
L Barr, Member Services Officer (LFRS) 

 
 
In attendance 

 

 

L Rix, Internal Audit, Lancashire County Council 
A Dalecki, Internal Audit, Lancashire County Council 

S Hobson, Internal Audit, Lancashire County Council 
G Jones, External Audit, Grant Thornton 
D Shaw, FBU 

 
 

1/23   Apologies for Absence  
 

 Apologies for absence were received from County Councillor Andrea Kay. 

 

2/23   Disclosure of Pecuniary and Non-Pecuniary Interests  

 

 None received. 
 

3/23   Minutes of the Previous Meeting  
 

 Resolved: That the Minutes of the last meeting held on 28 March 2023 be 

confirmed as a correct record and signed by the Chairman. 
 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



4/23   External Audit - Audit Plan 2022/23  

 

 The Chair, County Councillor Shedwick welcomed Georgia Jones, Audit Manager, 
Grant Thornton who presented the Audit Plan 2022/23.  
 

It was noted that the external auditors were required to produce an annual audit 
plan, setting out the areas intended for review during the year.  

 
Members considered the Audit Plan which included key matters that impacted on 

the audit, details of significant risks identified and the key aspects of proposed 
response to the risk, other matters, progress against prior year recommendations, 
Grant Thornton’s approach to materiality, IT audit strategy, value for money 

arrangements, audit logistics and team, audit fees, independence and non-audit 
services, and communication of audit matters with those charged with governance.   
 

The proposed audit fee took account of the agreed base fee of £29.3k (as set by 
Public Sector Audit Appointments (PSAA)) plus a further £14.5k to reflect the 

additional work required reflected in the audit plan as presented. This resulted in a 
total fee of £43.8k (last year’s agreed fee was £40.8k).  
 

Updates on the management over-ride of controls risk, prior year audit 
recommendations, value for money arrangements, and the IT audit strategy and 

the implementation of the Oracle Fusion: E Business Suite Finance and Payroll 
system would be provided later in the year. 

 
In response to a statement from County Councillor Clarke in relation to audit fees, 
The Chair stated that the previous year’s fee was £40,000 which was set by the 

PSAA and the £3,000 fee increase for the current year resonated across local 
government and external audit fees. Georgia Jones explained that the original fees 

by the PSAA were set 5 years prior to the contract for 2023/2024. Each year, they 
faced increased demand from the regulator around requirements and had to 
charge the Service for the work undertaken.  

 
In response to a question from County Councillor Singleton regarding whether the 

auditors had received the draft accounts, Georgia Jones replied that the draft 
account had not yet been received. The Chair added that the draft accounts would 
be addressed later in the agenda. 

 
County Councillor Singleton asked if there was a date for the Audit Findings 

Report. Georgia Jones explained the timetable for the year was for financial 
statements to be prepared by the end of May with the target date for audit being 1 

September which many organisations were finding difficult to meet. She could not 

give a date for issuing the Audit Findings Report until they had received the draft 
statements.  
 
Resolved: - That the Audit Committee agreed the external audit plan for 2022/23 

and the increased fee. 

 

5/23   Internal Audit Annual Report 2022/23  

 

 The Chair, County Councillor Shedwick introduced Laura Rix, Senior Auditor. Laura 

Page 2



Rix requested, and it was agreed, that agenda item 6 (Internal Audit Annual Report 

2022/23) be presented before item 5 (Internal Audit Monitoring Report).  
 

The report was presented by Laura Rix. The Internal Audit Annual Report 
summarised the work that the Internal Audit Service had undertaken during 
2022/23 and the key themes arising from it. It provided an opinion on the overall 

adequacy and effectiveness of the systems of governance, risk management and 
internal control. 

 
On the basis of programme of work for the year, the Senior Internal Auditor 
provided substantial assurance over the adequacy of design and effectiveness in 

operation of the organisation’s frameworks of governance, risk management and 
control. 

 
The opinion was based on the work the Internal Audit Service performed 
during 2022/23 and 2023/24 in relation to the 2022/23 audit plan, 

as approved by the Audit Committee in March 2022.  
 
Internal Audit Work Undertaken 

 
Laura Rix highlighted that it had been a positive year with 8 (72%) agreed actions 

being implemented, 2 (18%) in progress and 1(10%) superseded. All budgeted 
days (70) had been spent in delivering the audit plan. All 2022/23 work had been 
completed.  

 
Overall governance, risk management and control arrangements  

A high-level review was completed in April 2023 and no areas of concern were 
noted. Although the introduction of Fusion had caused some practical issues, 
additional controls had been introduced to mitigate any risks.  

 
Recruitment – Positive Action  

The audit report was completed in January 2023. 
 
Carbon Management Arrangements 

The audit report was completed in April 2023. 
 
Accounts payable, Accounts receivable and General ledger 

Audit work across each of these three key financial systems was completed in 
March 2023.  

 
HR and Payroll 

The review was completed in November 2022. 
 
Pensions administration 

Assurance over the operation of the Pension Fund had been obtained from work 
conducted directly by Lancashire County Council’s Internal Audit Service, work 

undertaken by the Local Pensions Partnership (Administration) Ltd, (LPPA) Internal 
Audit, and by KPMG for the Local Pension Partnership (Investments) Ltd (LPPI).  
 
Treasury Management 

The review was completed in October 2022. No areas for improvement were 

Page 3



identified. 

 
Follow up audit activity 

 
Training, Learning and Development 

Follow up work was completed during February 2022. Six actions had been 

implemented. 
 
Management of On Call provision 

Follow up work was completed in June 2023. Two actions had been implemented 
and two were progressing. 

 
Laura Rix highlighted that, since the last meeting in March, 2 audits had been 

finalised: Carbon Management and follow-up work on the On-Call Provision.  
 
Overall, the audit provided substantial assurance regarding the adequacy of design 

and effectiveness in operation of the Authority’s frameworks of governance, risk 
management and control. No significant areas of weakness in overall governance, 

risk management or control had been identified.  
 
It was acknowledged that the introduction of Fusion had caused some practical 

issues within LFRS and Internal Audit were satisfied that additional controls had 
been introduced to mitigate any risks. 
 
Other components of the audit plan 

 
National Fraud Initiative 

Following the submission of data in October and November 2022, the resulting 
matches were released by the Cabinet Office in January and February 2023. The 

table in the report detailed the total number of matches identified. Limited action 
had been taken to process the matches due to the timing of the release and LFRS 

operational pressures such as Fusion. Action would progress later in the year. 
 
County Councillor Singleton asked why there was no assurance opinion on the 

work completed on overall governance, risk management and control 
arrangements (page 44 of the agenda). Laura Rix explained that the work was 

continuous and linked to the overall opinion of the Authority’s frameworks of 
governance, risk management and internal control through resources reports, 
committee reports and external assurance received throughout the year. 

 
County Councillor Singleton noted that the follow up work had been implemented 

and asked if completion dates were in place for the non-conformities. Laura Rix 
confirmed that there were timeframes for non-conformities to be applied but 
policies were being embedded and therefore, they were still progressing.  

 
The Chair commented that he was pleased with the number of substantial 

assurances in the annual report.  
 
Resolved: - That the Audit Committee noted and endorsed the report. 

 
 

Page 4



6/23   Internal Audit Monitoring Report  

 

 The Internal Auditors produced a summary of progress against the annual plan for 
each Audit Committee meeting, setting out progress to date and any significant 

findings. The report for the period up to 12 June 2023 was presented by Laura Rix, 
Senior Auditor.  
 

To date, 1 day had been spent this financial year on completion of the 2023/24 plan 
and work to progress the internal audit plan would begin in October. The table in 

the report provided a summary of the assignments that comprised the 2022/23 
audit plan.  
 

Since the 2022/23 audit plan was agreed, an additional Audit had been requested 
by the Director of Corporate Services on District Planning. The proposed additional 

resources that would be required was approximately 10 days which had been 
provisionally added to the plan.  
 

The Director of Corporate Services explained that, in regard to district planning, 
HMICFRS required information from Lancashire Fire and Rescue Service relating 

to planning activity and how the Service plan was being delivered throughout the 
organisation. Each district in Lancashire had a number of fire stations, through 
which, the Service plan was delivered with a targeted approach to that area. Each 

district had its own plan which would be assessed on how it was delivered, 
monitored, and reported through governance arrangements. It was considered 

valuable to have an independent assessment to discuss with the Inspectorate and 
take learning from.  
 

County Councillor Dad stated that, in relation to district planning, it was good 
practice to learn from other sources to improve an already excellent Service and 

asked that Members were kept updated so they too could be educated.  
 
Resolved: That the Committee noted and endorsed the report. 

 

7/23   Annual Governance Statement  

 

 The Director of Corporate Services presented the report. The Authority was 
required to publish an Annual Governance Statement along with the Authority’s 

financial statements, following a review of the effectiveness of the internal controls 
in place. The report and the statements set out the key elements of the Authority’s 

governance framework, how these had been evaluated, the outcome of the 
assessment of effectiveness and any areas for improvement. 
 

The Audit Committee had previously approved a Code of Corporate Governance, 
in line with guidance produced jointly by CIPFA (Chartered Institute of Public 

Finance Accountants) and SOLACE (Society of Local Authority Chief Executives). 
The Code defined corporate governance as the way an authority ensured that it 
was doing the right things, in the right way, for the right people, in a timely, 

inclusive, open, honest and accountable manner. 
 

In order to assess the effectiveness of the Authority’s current arrangements a self-
assessment had been undertaken by the Executive Board who had considered the 

Page 5



various sources of assurance that supported the core principles outlined in the 

report and the outcome of this was considered by Members under appendix 1 as 
now presented. One of the key elements of this was external assurance of the 

systems, and this was provided by internal and external auditors, both of whom 
provided positive reports, and by the HMICFRS Inspection which rated the Service 
as Good. 

 
The assessment also considered recommendations made as part of last year’s 

Annual Governance Statement i) a project to replace the existing Performance 
Management System would commence; ii) an upgraded Finance system would be 
implemented in April 2022 and the Service would review and implement 

improvements to the monthly budget monitoring process which made greater use 
of additional functionality provided; iii) the Core Code of Ethics would be embedded 

into the corporate policy, and recruitment and promotion process.  
 

It was noted that as a result of various reviews the following area had been 

identified for further improvement: - 
 

 Identify a mechanism to report to Members of the CFA our response to national 
recommendations made by the HMICFRS during the year. 

 

As part of the review, the Service was required to identify and disclose any 
significant internal control issues, of which there had been none, hence the overall 

conclusion was that the system of internal controls was adequate.  
 
In response to a question from County Councillor Singleton in relation to 

completion dates for 2 areas for improvement that were listed as ‘on-going’ in Last 
Year’s Annual Governance Statement, the Director of Corporate Services informed 

that they would be completed within the financial year and a date for completion 
would be added before the Chair signed the statement.  
 
Resolved: That the Committee noted and endorsed the self-assessment and the 

Annual Governance Statement based on this and recommended that the Chairman 

of the Authority sign the Statement once the added dates for completion of the 2 
areas for improvement had been added. 
 

8/23   Accounting Estimates  
 

 The Director of Corporate Services presented the report. It was noted that the 
International Standard on Auditing (ISA) 540: Auditing Accounting Estimates and 
Related Disclosures was revised in December 2018 by the International Auditing 

and Assurance Standards Board (IAASB), an independent standard-setting body 
that served the public interest by setting high-quality international standards for 

auditing, quality control, and review. The auditing standard was revised because 
Statement of Accounts were increasingly subject to judgements and estimations 
performed by management and experts on a range of items within them, as 

required by current accounting standards.  These changes required that auditors 
should understand and evaluate: “the nature and extent of oversight and 

governance that the entity has in place over management’s financial reporting 
process relevant to the accounting estimates.”   
 

Page 6



The Audit Committee needed to understand what significant estimates would be 

included within the Statement of Accounts which were those that: 
 

 Required significant judgement by management to address subjectivity; 

 Had high estimation uncertainty; 

 Were complex to make; 

 Had, or ought to have had, a change in method, assumptions or data 
compared to previous periods; or 

 Involved significant assumptions. 
 

The Statement of Accounts contained estimated figures that were based on 
assumptions about the future or that were otherwise uncertain. Estimates 

considered past and current trends and/or other relevant factors. However, 
because balances could not be determined with certainty, actual results could be 
materially different from the assumptions and estimates.  

 
It was noted that the Statement of Accounts were prepared with the underlying 
significant assumption of Going Concern, which meant that the Authority 

considered its financial position to be stable for the foreseeable future, as assessed 
at the most recent budget setting exercise finalised in February 2023. Accounting 

standards required that management made an annual assessment of going 
concern, although the Code recognised that Local Authorities could not be created 
or dissolved without statutory prescription, the accounts must therefore be 

prepared on a Going Concern basis. Management had prepared the assessment in 
line with requirements. 

 
Members considered the significant Accounting Estimates for 2022/23 including 
the: estimated value, degree of uncertainty and methodology used for the: 

i) valuation of land and buildings; ii) depreciation of property and equipment; iii) 
valuation of both Firefighter and Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) 

liability; iv) valuation of LGPS pension asset; v) fair value measurement – private 
finance initiative schemes; and vi) holiday pay expenditure accrual. 
 

It was noted that each year Executive Board was asked to consider whether there 
were any transactions, events, or conditions (or changes in these) that might trigger 

the recognition of an additional significant accounting estimate, or the potential 
recognition, known as a contingent liability. Based on the returns received from 
Executive Board, the contingent liabilities note had been updated to reflect the 

current position, but there were no further significant events or transactions 
identified by this process. 

 
Resolved: - That the report be noted and the accounting estimates as reported be 

endorsed. 

 

9/23   Financial Statements Update  
 

 The Director of Corporate Services provided the committee with an update on the 
preparation of the Authority’s 2022/23 unaudited financial statements and included 

the draft core financial statements for information; the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Account, Movement in Reserves Statement and Balance Sheet.  

 

Page 7



The Accounts and Audit (amendment) Regulations 2022 came into force on 22 July 

2022 and revised the statutory deadline for publishing the audited financial 
statements to 30 September for 2022/23 accounts and the subsequent 5 years. 

The deadline for the Authority to produce and publish draft accounts had reverted 
back to 31 May 2022/23 as per the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015. 
 

At the previous meeting, the Committee was advised that due to changes in the 
finance teams and delays implementing the new financial system, the Authority 

sought to produce their draft set of financial statements for 2022/23 by 31 July 
2023. At the time the report was written, the Authority had produced a first draft of 
the financial statements and its quality assurance processes had now commenced.  

 
There was a requirement to obtain certification of the accounts by the Responsible 

Financial Officer (RFO); for the Authority, this was the Director of Corporate 
Services. It would be completed by the end of July and the draft statements 
published on the Authority’s website. 

 
The Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2015 applied to the preparation, 

approval and audit of the Statement of Accounts and other financial statements. 
The regulations were based on International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) 
which attempted to standardise accounts in a consistent format across both the 

public and private sectors with the aim of achieving greater transparency. The table 
in the report summarised the adjustments required to the revenue outturn to reach 
the Total Comprehensive Income and Expenditure and reported in the financial 

statements. 
 

The draft Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Account, Movement in 
Reserves Statement and Balance Sheet were set out Appendix 1. Subject to 
changes as part of the Quality Assurance Processes, they would form part of the 

accounts for audit.  
 

It was noted that the Authority now had a reserve balance of £4.5m and in that 
figure was the quarter share in North West Fire Control. The balance sheet showed 
the pension reserve left an underlying deficit position, but once that was stripped 

away, the Service was in a positive position.  
 

The Director of Corporate Services highlighted that all members of the finance 
team were fairly new to the Service and had carried out an incredible amount of 
work to make sure the Authority was in a promising position.  

 
Georgia Jones, Audit manager, explained that, to manage expectations, if they 

received the draft accounts in the upcoming weeks, they would be unable to start 
work immediately as they would have to manage resources and capacity within the 
team but assured that the work would be completed as soon as possible. 

 
County Councillor Clarke commented that it had become clear that the unusable 

reserves on the balance sheet were mainly due to pensions.  
 
County Councillor Singleton asked how confident the finance team were that they 

could produce the draft financial statements by 31 July and the Director of 
Corporate service confirmed that they were very confident. 

Page 8



 

County Councillor Hennessy invited the new officers from the finance team to 
future meetings of the Audit Committee for the experience, which the Director of 

Corporate Services agreed.  
 
Resolved: - That the committee noted the update with progress in preparing the 

unaudited Financial Statements; and noted the Authority’s draft core financial 
statements that would form part of the 2022/23 unaudited Financial Statements. 

 

10/23   External Audit - Understanding How the Audit Committee Gains Assurance 

from Management  
 

 It was noted that in order to comply with Auditing Standards, the External Auditors, 

Grant Thornton needed to establish an understanding of the management 
processes in place to prevent and detect fraud and to ensure compliance with laws 
and regulations. They were also required to make enquiries of both management 

and those charged with governance as to their knowledge of any actual, suspected 
or alleged fraud.  

 
International auditing standards placed certain obligations on auditors to document 
managements’ view on some key areas that affected the financial statements. In 

addition to the request to management, they also needed to gain an understanding 
of how those charged with governance maintained oversight of the above 
processes as set out in letters to management (Executive Board) and the Chair of 

the Audit Committee as now considered alongside separate responses. 
 
Resolved: That the Committee noted and endorsed the response submitted by the 

Executive Board and approved the response by the Chair of the Audit Committee 
for submission. 

 

11/23   Date of Next Meeting  
 

 The next meeting of the Committee would be held on 26 September 2023 at 

10:00 hours in the Main Conference Room at Lancashire Fire and Rescue Service 

Headquarters, Fulwood. 
 

Further meeting dates were noted for 28 November 2023 and 28 March 2024 and 
agreed for 25 July 2024. 
 

 

M Nolan 
Clerk to CFA 

LFRS HQ 
Fulwood 
 

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Lancashire Combined Fire Authority 
Audit Committee 
Meeting to be held on 28 November 2023 
 

External Audit – Addendum to the Audit Plan 
(Appendix 1 refers) 

 
Contact for further information: 
Steven Brown - Director of Corporate Services – Telephone Number 01772 826804 
 

Executive Summary 

 

This report provides an update to the audit plan agreed by the Audit Committee on 
25 July 2023 to reflect an additional risk identified relating to incomplete or 
inaccurate information transferred to the new general ledger hosted by Lancashire 

County Council. 
 
Recommendation 

 
The Committee is asked to note and endorse the report.  

 
Information 

 

The additional risk identified will require additional work in order to respond to this risk 
including a review of the IT environment to document and evaluate controls and map 
closing balances from the previous ledger to the opening balances in the new ledger. 

 
Financial Implications 

 
These will be provided in a separate update to the Audit Committee. 
 
Business Risk Implications 

 

None 
 
Environmental Impact 

 
None 
 
Equality and Diversity Implications 

 

None 
 

Human Resource Implications 
 

None 

 
 

Page 11

Agenda Item 4



 

Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 
List of Background Papers 

Paper: 
Date: 

Contact: 
Reason for inclusion in Part 2 if appropriate: N/A 
 

 
 

Page 12



P
age 13



P
age 14



•

•

•

•

P
age 15



•

•

P
age 16



•

•

P
age 17



P
age 18



 

Lancashire Combined Fire Authority 
Audit Committee 
Meeting to be held on 28 November 2023 

 
External Audit Findings Report 
(Appendix 1 refers) 

 
Contact for further information: 

Steven Brown - Director of Corporate Services – Telephone Number 01772 826804 
 

Executive Summary 

 

The external auditor is required to produce an Audit Findings Report summarising 
the conclusions from their work undertaken as part of the year-end audit of accounts. 

As highlighted in the report work is substantially complete and subject to resolution 
of some outstanding matters there are no matters which require modification of the 
audit opinion or material changes to the financial statements.  

 
The Value for Money (VFM) work has not yet been completed so the external auditor 

is not yet in a position to issue the Auditors Annual Report; this is expected to be 
reported by December 2023. 
 
Recommendation 

 

The Committee is asked to note and endorse the matters raised in the report and 
two recommendations and management responses on page 26 of the report.  
 

 

Information 

 

Under the statutory Code of Audit Practice for Local Government bodies our external 
auditors Grant Thornton are required to issue a report to those charged with 
governance summarising the conclusions from their audit work. This draft report, 

known as the Audit Findings Report, is attached as Appendix 1, and will be 
presented by the Audit Manager.  

 
The report sets out that the audit is substantially complete. There are two 
recommendations that are agreed by management; one relating to a review of the 

fixed asset register to ensure excess depreciation is not charged against fully 
depreciated assets and to consider if the general ledger can be updated to include 

additional journal details which has now been implemented.  
 
The report sets out the matters still outstanding and that the VFM work will be 

reported before the end of the calendar year. 
 
Financial Implications 

 
Audit fees are set out in the appendix. 

 

Page 19

Agenda Item 5



 

Business Risk Implications 

 

None 
 

Environmental Impact 

 
None 
 
Equality and Diversity Implications 

 
None 
 

Human Resource Implications 
 

None 
 
 
Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 
List of Background Papers 

Paper: 
Date: 
Contact: 

Reason for inclusion in Part 2 if appropriate: N/A 
 

 
 
 

Page 20



Appendix 1

P
age 21



Georgia Jones

P
age 22



•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 23



•

•
•

•

•

P
age 24



P
age 25



•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 26



.

P
age 27



•

•

•

•

•
•

P
age 28



•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 29



•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 30



•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 31



Audit findings

P
age 32



TBC

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•









P
age 33



•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•











P
age 34



P
age 35





Assessment






P
age 36



P
age 37



•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 38



•

•

•

P
age 39



P
age 40



P
age 41



P
age 42



P
age 43



P
age 44



Appendices



























P
age 45













P
age 46







P
age 47



P
age 48







 

•

•

 

 

 

P
age 49



P
age 50



P
age 51



P
age 52



•
•
•
•

•
•
•
•
•

•

•
•

P
age 53



P
age 54



P
age 55



•

•

P
age 56



P
age 57



P
age 58



P
age 59



P
age 60



 

Lancashire Combined Fire Authority 
Audit Committee 
Meeting to be held on 28 November 2023 
 

External Audit – Letter of Representation 
(Appendix 1 refers) 

 
Contact for further information: 

Steven Brown - Director of Corporate Services – Telephone Number 01772 826804 
 

Executive Summary 

 

As part of the year-end process the Authority is required to sign a letter of 
representation on completion of the audit. This letter confirms that the Authority has 

disclosed all relevant information in its accounts for the year in question and that all 
issues which should have been brought to the attention of the auditors have been. 
 
Recommendation 

 

The Committee is asked to authorise the signing of the letter by the Chair of the 
Audit Committee on completion of the audit.  
 

 

Information 

 

The letter of representation is attached as Appendix 1 and this requires signing by 
the Treasurer and Chair of the Audit Committee to confirm that there are no issues 
that should have been brought to the attention of the auditors, but which have not 

been. 
 

Note that there is an additional representation included this year in relation to 
Reinforced Autoclaved Aerated Concrete (RAAC); that we have identified one 
building which we have highlighted to the auditor and confirm we are not aware of 

any other property in the Authority’s portfolio that is impacted by this issue. 
 

The Treasurer has confirmed that he will sign the letter when there are no further 
issues that require disclosure following any further matters determined from the work 
by the auditors.  

 
Financial Implications 

 
None. 
 
Business Risk Implications 

 

None 
 
Environmental Impact 

 

Page 61

Agenda Item 6



 

None 
 

Equality and Diversity Implications 

 

None 
 
Human Resource Implications 

 

None 

 
Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 
List of Background Papers 

Paper: 
Date: 

Contact: 
Reason for inclusion in Part 2 if appropriate: N/A 
 

 
 

Page 62



Appendix 1 

 

[LETTER TO BE WRITTEN ON CLIENT HEADED PAPER] 
 

 

Grant Thornton UK LLP 
Royal Liver Building  
Liverpool 
L3 1PS 

 

[Date] – {TO BE DATED SAME DATE AS DATE OF AUDIT OPINION] 

 

Dear Grant Thornton UK LLP 

Lancashire Combined Fire Authority 

Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 

This representation letter is provided in connection with the audit of the financial 

statements of Lancashire Combined Fire Authority for the year ended 31 March 2023 
for the purpose of expressing an opinion as to whether the Authority financial 
statements give a true and fair view in accordance with International Financial 

Reporting Standards, and the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority 
Accounting in the United Kingdom 2022/23 and applicable law.  

We confirm that to the best of our knowledge and belief having made such inquiries 
as we considered necessary for the purpose of appropriately informing ourselves: 

Financial Statements 

i. We have fulfilled our responsibilities for the preparation of the Authority’s 
financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting 

Standards and the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority 
Accounting in the United Kingdom 2022/23 ("the Code"); in particular, the 
financial statements are fairly presented in accordance therewith. 

ii. We have complied with the requirements of all statutory directions affecting the 
Authority and these matters have been appropriately reflected and disclosed in 
the financial statements. 

iii. The Authority has complied with all aspects of contractual agreements that 
could have a material effect on the financial statements in the event of non-

compliance. There has been no non-compliance with requirements of any 
regulatory authorities that could have a material effect on the financial 
statements in the event of non-compliance. 

iv. We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation, and 
maintenance of internal control to prevent and detect fraud. 

v. Significant assumptions used by us in making accounting estimates, including 
those measured at fair value, are reasonable. Such accounting estimates 
include […]. We are satisfied that the material judgements used in the 

preparation of the financial statements are soundly based, in accordance with 
the Code and adequately disclosed in the financial statements. We understand 

Page 63



Appendix 1 

 

our responsibilities includes identifying and considering alternative, methods, 

assumptions, or source data that would be equally valid under the financial 
reporting framework, and why these alternatives were rejected in favour of the 

estimate used. We are satisfied that the methods, the data, and the significant 
assumptions used by us in making accounting estimates and their related 
disclosures are appropriate to achieve recognition, measurement or disclosure 

that is reasonable in accordance with the Code and adequately disclosed in the 
financial statements. 

vi. We confirm that we are satisfied that the actuarial assumptions underlying the 
valuation of pension scheme assets and liabilities for IAS19 Employee Benefits 
disclosures are consistent with our knowledge. We confirm that all settlements 

and curtailments have been identified and properly accounted for. We also 
confirm that all significant post-employment benefits have been identified and 

properly accounted for.  

vii. Except as disclosed in the financial statements: 

a. there are no unrecorded liabilities, actual or contingent 

b. none of the assets of the Authority has been assigned, pledged or 
mortgaged 

c. there are no material prior year charges or credits, nor exceptional or 
non-recurring items requiring separate disclosure. 

viii. Related party relationships and transactions have been appropriately 

accounted for and disclosed in accordance with the requirements of 
International Financial Reporting Standards and the Code. 

ix. All events subsequent to the date of the financial statements and for which 

International Financial Reporting Standards and the Code require adjustment 
or disclosure have been adjusted or disclosed. 

x. We have considered the adjusted misstatements, and misclassification and 
disclosures changes schedules included in your Audit Findings Report. The 
Authority’s financial statements have been amended for these misstatements, 

misclassifications and disclosure changes and are free of material 
misstatements, including omissions. 

xi. We have considered the unadjusted misstatements schedule included in your 
Audit Findings Report. We have not adjusted the financial statements for these 
misstatements brought to our attention as [they are immaterial to the results of 

the Authority and its financial position at the year-end OR list reasons]. The 
financial statements are free of material misstatements, including omissions. 

xii. Actual or possible litigation and claims have been accounted for and disclosed 
in accordance with the requirements of International Financial Reporting 
Standards. 

xiii. We have no plans or intentions that may materially alter the carrying value or 
classification of assets and liabilities reflected in the financial statements. 

xiv. We have updated our going concern assessment. We continue to believe that 
the Authority’s financial statements should be prepared on a going concern 
basis and have not identified any material uncertainties related to going 

concern on the grounds that:  
Page 64



Appendix 1 

 

a. the nature of the Authority means that, notwithstanding any intention to 

cease its operations in their current form, it will continue to be 
appropriate to adopt the going concern basis of accounting because, in 

such an event, services it performs can be expected to continue to be 
delivered by related public authorities and preparing the financial 
statements on a going concern basis will still provide a faithful 

representation of the items in the financial statements 

b. the financial reporting framework permits the entry to prepare its 

financial statements on the basis of the presumption set out under a) 
above; and  

c. the Authority’s system of internal control has not identified any events or 

conditions relevant to going concern. 

We believe that no further disclosures relating to the Authority's ability to 

continue as a going concern need to be made in the financial statements.  
 

xv. The Authority has complied with all aspects of ring-fenced grants that could 

have a material effect on the Authority’s financial statements in the event of 
non-compliance. 

 
xvi. We have assessed our property and estates for any potential instances of 

reinforced autoclaved aerated concrete (RAAC). We have identified one 

building which we have highlighted to the auditor. We confirm we are not aware 
of any other property in the Authority’s portfolio that is impacted by this issue. 
We confirm the values of property in the financial statements remain 

appropriate and are not subject to impairment. 
 

Information Provided 

xvii. We have provided you with: 

a. access to all information of which we are aware that is relevant to the 

preparation of the Authority’s financial statements such as records, 
documentation, and other matters; 

b. additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose 
of your audit; and 

c. access to persons within the Authority via remote arrangements from 

whom you determined it necessary to obtain audit evidence. 

xviii. We have communicated to you all deficiencies in internal control of which 

management is aware. 

xix. All transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are 
reflected in the financial statements. 

xx. We have disclosed to you the results of our assessment of the risk that the 
financial statements may be materially misstated as a result of fraud. 

 
xxi. We have disclosed to you all information in relation to fraud or suspected fraud 

that we are aware of and that affects the Authority and involves: 

a. management; 

Page 65



Appendix 1 

 

b. employees who have significant roles in internal control; or 

c. others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial 
statements. 

xxii. We have disclosed to you all information in relation to allegations of fraud, or 
suspected fraud, affecting the financial statements communicated by 
employees, former employees, analysts, regulators, or others. 

xxiii. We have disclosed to you all known instances of non-compliance or suspected 
non-compliance with laws and regulations whose effects should be considered 

when preparing financial statements. 

xxiv. We have disclosed to you the identity of the Authority's related parties and all 
the related party relationships and transactions of which we are aware. 

xxv. We have disclosed to you all known actual or possible litigation and claims 
whose effects should be considered when preparing the financial statements. 

Annual Governance Statement 

xxvi. We are satisfied that the Annual Governance Statement (AGS) fairly reflects 
the Authority's risk assurance and governance framework, and we confirm that 

we are not aware of any significant risks that are not disclosed within the AGS. 

Narrative Report 

xxvii. The disclosures within the Narrative Report fairly reflect our understanding of 
the Authority's financial and operating performance over the period covered by 
the Authority’s financial statements. 

Approval 

The approval of this letter of representation was minuted by the Authority’s Audit 
Committee at its meeting on 28 November 2023. 

 

 

Yours faithfully 

 

 

Name…………………………… 

 

Position…………………………. 

 

Date……………………………. 

 

 

Name…………………………… 

 
Page 66



Appendix 1 

 

Position…………………………. 

 

Date……………………………. 

 

Signed on behalf of the Authority 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 67



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Lancashire Combined Fire Authority 
Audit Committee 
Meeting to be held on 28 November 2023 
 

External Audit Fees 
(Appendices 1 and 2 refer) 

 
Contact for further information: 

Steven Brown - Director of Corporate Services – Telephone Number 01772 826804 
 

Executive Summary 

 

This report updates Committee Members of the proposed audit fees from 2023/24 
advised by Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd following the appointment process 

reported to the CFA in December 2021.  
 
Recommendation 

 
The Committee is asked to note the proposed 2023/24 audit fees and response to 

the consultation. 
 

 
Information 

 
 

The CFA accepted the Public Sector Audit Appointments invitation to opt-in to the 
national scheme in December 2021. Following a process our auditors Grant 
Thornton were appointed for a further five years from 2023/24. The procurement 

took place against the challenging backcloth of a troubled audit profession, a 
turbulent market and a local audit system that is facing unprecedented difficulties 

including large volumes of delayed audit opinions.  
 
The Committee was advised that in Autumn 2023 the Public Sector Audit 

Appointments Ltd (PSAA) will consult on the proposed scale of audit fees payable by 
bodies in respect of the audit of 2023/24 accounts and to expect increases of the 

order of 150% on the total fees for 2022/23.  
 
Audit requirements have increased in recent years as a result of increased 

regulatory challenge, changes to the audit work required under the Code of Audit 
Practice and updated auditing and financial reporting standards. On the 19th 

September the Chief Executive of the PSAA advised the Authority of our proposed 
fee for 2023/24 of £92,606; representing a 151% increase (See Appendix 1). 
Alongside this the PSAA launched a consultation on the fee scales which we 

responded to (See Appendix 2). 
 

This consultation on the 2023/24 fee scale is taking place at a time of change in the 
local audit system. The audit profession has been subject to high levels of scrutiny in 
recent years following several widely reported financial failures in the private sector 

and increase in reported Section 114 notices across the sector. 

Page 69

Agenda Item 7



 

 
The financial pressure will be included in the 2024/25 budget report to the Authority in 

February 2024. 
 
Financial Implications 

 
Set out in the report. 

 
Business Risk Implications 

 
None 
 

Environmental Impact 

 

None 
 
Equality and Diversity Implications 

 
None 
 
Human Resource Implications 
 

None 
 

 
Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 
List of Background Papers 

Paper: 
Date: 

Contact: 
Reason for inclusion in Part 2 if appropriate: N/A 
 

 
 

 

Page 70



Prepared on 19 September 2023 

2023/24 scale fee for Lancashire Combined Fire Authority 

PSAA has recently launched its consultation on the fee scale for 2023/24 audits. 

Our aim is to update your scale fee to ensure it reflects current audit requirements. This updating 

is particularly important for the 2023/24 fee scale to ensure fees are set on a consistent and 

equitable basis at the start of the new contract period. This means that the scale fee for each 

opted-in body better reflects the audit work required under the current Code of Audit Practice 

published by the National Audit Office and the regulatory expectations of the Financial Reporting 

Council. Updating the fee scale in this way will have the benefit of making expected fees clearer 

for opted-in bodies much earlier in the audit cycle and reducing the volume of fee variations. 

We propose setting your 2023/24 scale fee based on the elements set out in Table 1 below. 

Table 2 provides more detail. Further explanation of each of the elements is provided in the 

consultation on the fee scale for 2023/24 audits.  

Table 1: Summary of your proposed 2023/24 scale fee 

Fee scale elements 

1) 2022/23 scale fee £29,295 

2) Add: approved fee variations or estimates for recurring work not already
included (see Table 2 for details)

£600 

3) Add: changes in audit requirements (VFM arrangements, ISA 540) £7,000 

4) Add: adjustment for special circumstances (where applicable) £0 

Subtotal 2022/23 scale fees plus recurring fees £36,895 

5) Audit fee adjustment to reflect the procurement outcome (uplift by 151%) £55,711 

Scale fee for 2023/24 £92,606 

PSAA is required under the local audit regulations to consult on and set the 2023/24 fee scale by 

1 December 2023. We cannot change your scale fee after that date. Any further changes in the 

work the auditor needs to undertake on your audit will therefore need to be determined using the 

fee variations process, and if the increase or decrease in the work is recurring the change will be 

considered for consolidation in the next fee scale. 

We are setting the 2023/24 fee scale at a time of change in the local audit system. In July 2023 

the Department for Levelling Up, Housing and Communities (DLUHC) announced proposals to 

address the audit backlog and is working with all stakeholders to tackle the complex issues 

involved. The proposals include the possibility of a time-limited revision to the Code of Audit 

Practice, which may reduce the amount of audit work needed while the backlogs are resolved. 

The proposals are still under consideration and any changes affecting fees are still to be 

confirmed, so we cannot reflect them in the proposed fee scale. We are therefore consulting on 

the basis of existing audit requirements. We will need to assess the impact on audit fees if 

changes are confirmed, and at that point we will write to opted-in bodies to set out how we will 

update fees. 

Table 2 below sets out the proposed aggregate recurring value for consolidation into your 

2023/24 scale fee in column A. Some of these recurring values may already have been 

consolidated into your 2022/23 scale audit fee. Where this is the case, relevant figures are shown 

in column B. The balance of any recurring value (A minus B) which has not yet been 

consolidated is shown in column C. These are the additional fees which we propose to 

incorporate into your 2023/24 scale fee. 

The proposed values in Table 2 are based on fee variations approved to date for your audit over 

the four audit years 2018/19-2021/22 (left-hand side of table 2). Where fee variations are yet to 

be determined, either for particular categories or overall, we have used estimates based on 

averages for your authority type. The figures in Table 2 may not reconcile directly to the fee 

variation statements we have sent you previously for approved fee variations because: 

Appendix 1

Page 71



• we have reviewed each fee variation to identify the recurring element specifically, as

sometimes fee variations can be a combination of recurring and non-recurring work; and

• we have considered the applicability of each category to each opted-in body to ensure we are

consolidating the proposed additional fees consistently and equitably where we would expect

the auditor would need to undertake additional work.

Further fee variations may be needed during the course of the 2023/24 audit. For example, our 

research has concluded that it is premature at this stage to consolidate additional fees for some 

changes in audit requirements such as ISA 315 and ISA 240. The recurring elements of any 

further fee variations approved will be considered in future fee scale consultations. 

Table 2: Summary of recurring figures for consolidation into 2023/24 scale fees 

Fee variation area of work 

Proposed aggregate 
recurring value for 
consolidation into 

2023/24 scale fees 

Already consolidated 
into 2022/23 scale 

fees 

Recurring value for 
consolidation into 

2023/24 scale fees 

A B A-B=C

Group accounts – note 1 £0 £0 £0 
Pension valuation £2,188 £2,188 £0 
PIE £0 £0 £0 
PPE valuation £2,188 £2,188 £0 
Increased FRC Challenge £1,850 £1,250 £600 
PFI – note 2 £0 £0 £0 
Other – note 3 £0 £0 £0 
VFM commentary £5,500 £0 £5,500 
ISA540 £1,500 £0 £1,500 
IAS19 – note 4 £0 £0 £0 
Major local audits £0 £0 £0 
Investment valuations – note 5 £0 £0 £0 

Total £13,226 £5,626 £7,600 

Notes 

1. Group accounts: in some cases, for example bodies with long-standing group accounts

requirements, if we have not previously consolidated a fee variation into the scale fee but are

aware that work on group accounts will be required, we have updated the proposed 2023/24

scale fee accordingly.

2. PFI: while most PFI schemes are long-standing, an incoming audit firm will not be familiar

with the details of each scheme and will need to do additional work to understand the scheme

and model. The additional work will therefore require a fee variation.

3. Other: we have included additional amounts where the body has experienced significant

changes in size or complexity or other factors. We propose making a temporary scale fee

adjustment, but subject to detailed review after the first audit year to compare to the actual

outcome. We will then determine if the adjustment is correct or requires further refinement for

subsequent years.

4. IAS19: applies to pension fund audits only and reflects the expectation in NAO auditor

guidance that auditors of pension funds should provide IAS 19 assurances under the scope

of the Code of Audit Practice to auditors of admitted bodies that are relevant local audit

bodies. We propose including an additional fee for this work in the 2023/24 scale fee for each

pension fund audit, calculated based on the number of assurances expected for local audit

bodies in the local government sector. This work was previously outside the Code, so

although additional fees are likely to have been charged these may have been reported

differently by the auditors.

5. Investment valuations: applies to pension fund audits / pension authorities only and relates

to the additional work/testing auditors are doing in response to clarification of regulatory

expectations. This includes auditors demonstrating that they have heightened their challenge

of management’s assumptions/assessments and have a greater depth to their assurance

about the source of evidence.

Page 72



Appendix 2 

Response to PSAA Consultation questions 

The Public Sector Audit Appointment Authority (PSAA) has recently launched its consultation 

on the fee scale for the 2023/24 audits (note these largely relate to audit fees payable in 

2024/25 for the audit of the 2023/24 accounts). As the table shows this results in an 

increase of c150% for all authorities. Following a procurement exercise the fees have been 

released for each authority, for the CFA the fee is set out below: 

 

The PSAA have asked a small number of questions of which the key questions and responses 

are proposed below: 

3. Do you support the proposals in the consultation for the fee scale for 2023/24 audits? 

No. Whilst the increase in audit fees of c150% is not unexpected given PSAA’s 

announcement in October 2022, it does represent a significant funding challenge for 

Lancashire Fire Authority that is already facing a range of financial pressures including 

significant increases in utility costs, diesel, green book costs, maintenance costs, insurance 

costs etc.  

We feel radical change to the local audit system is clearly needed urgently. The level of work 

required for the current reporting and disclosure obligations on account preparers, which 

then require audit and oversight, is not proportionate to their value to the user of the 

accounts, given the potential financial or governance risks are relatively low. Our ask of 

Government, the PSAA and other bodies is to work together to change the regime and 

deliver ‘a more proportionate audit’ that helps public bodies, delivers better results for users 

of the accounts, and should also encourage competition in the sector which would 

ultimately reduce unnecessary costs. 

Without urgent regime changes or specific new burdens funding we cannot support these 

increases. Fire authorities will have to make difficult decisions if cost increases are not 

avoided or funded, and that may result in a reduction in front line wholetime and on call 

firefighters with the removal of fire engines and a resultant degradation in service with an 

increase in response times and risk; and a reduction in those carrying out importance 

prevention and building safety work.  

4. Do you agree with the proposed elements of the 2023/24 fee scale? 

Yes, the elements of the fee are not challenged it is the quantum of the procurement 

outcome.  Page 73



5. Are there other factors you think should be reflected in the 2023/24 fee scale? 

No 

6. Any other comments you would like to make? 

No, see question 3. 

Page 74



 

Lancashire Combined Fire Authority 
Audit Committee 
Meeting to be held on 28 November 2023 
 

Internal Audit Monitoring Report 
(Appendix 1 refers) 

 
Contact for further information: 

Steven Brown - Director of Corporate Services – Telephone Number 01772 826804 
 

Executive Summary 

 

The attached report sets out the current position in respect of the internal audit plan 
for 2023/24. 

 
Decision Required 

 

The Committee is asked to note/endorse the report. 
 

 

Information 

 
The internal auditors produce a summary of progress against the annual plan for 

each Audit Committee meeting, setting out progress to date and any significant 
findings. The report is attached as Appendix 1 and will be presented by the Head of 

Internal Audit.  
 
Financial Implications 

 
None 

 
Business Risk Implications 

 

None 
 

Environmental Impact 

 
None 
 
Equality and Diversity Implications 

 
None 
 

Human Resource Implications 
 

None 
 

Page 75

Agenda Item 8



 

Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 
List of Background Papers 

Paper: 
Date: 

Contact: 
Reason for inclusion in Part 2 if appropriate: N/A 
 

 
 

Page 76



 

 

Appendix 1 

 

 

Lancashire Combined Fire Authority 

Internal Audit Service monitoring report: period ended 

13 November 2023 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

        

 

 

 

 

 

Page 77



Lancashire Combined Fire Authority 

Internal Audit Service monitoring report: period ended 13 November 2023 

 

 2 

1 Purpose of this report 

1.1 The Internal Audit Plan for 2023/24 was approved by the Audit Committee in March 
2023. This report details the progress to date in undertaking the agreed coverage.   

 

2 Internal audit work undertaken                        

2.1 Work carried out during the period 1 April 2023 to 11 November 2023 was in 
accordance with the agreed audit plan. To date, 22 days have been spent this 
financial year on completion of the 2023/24 plan, equating to 28% of the total 

planned audit activity of 80 days. The table below shows the current status of all 
audit work.  

2.2 No areas of concern have come to our attention in conducting our assurance work to 
date that requires bringing to the attention of committee members. 

Audit review Audit days 

 

Status Assurance 
Opinion 

Planned Actual Variation 

Governance and business effectiveness 

Overall 

governance, 
risk 
management 

and control 
arrangements 

3 1 2 Ongoing 

This is ongoing by the Audit 
Manager within the year. 

Service delivery and support 

Equality 

Impact 
Assessments 

10 9 1 Draft Report 

shared with 
client 

N/A 

Management 

of change 
within LFRS 

10 9 1 Final 

 

 Substantial  

District 
Planning 

Activity 

10 0.5 9.5 Progressing: 

Scope agreed 

and testing 
started 

 

N/A 

Page 78



Lancashire Combined Fire Authority 

Internal Audit Service monitoring report: period ended 13 November 2023 

 

 3 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

3 Extracts from Audit Reports 

3.1 Extracts of assurance summaries are shown below

Business processes 

Accounts 

payable 

9 0 9 Not started N/A 

Accounts 
receivable 

6 0 6 Not started N/A 

General 

ledger 

6 0 6 Not started N/A 

HR/ Payroll 10 0 10 Progressing: 

Scope agreed 
and detailed 

testing starting 
end of 

November 

N/A 

Treasury 
management 

4 0 4 Not started N/A 

Follow up audit activity 

Follow up 

activity 

2 0 2 Not started 

There is only 
KFS actions 
which will be 

picked up in the 
main KFS audit. 

N/A 

Other components of the audit plan 

Management 

activity 

9 2.5 6.5 Ongoing: 

This is ongoing by the Audit 
Manager within the year. 

National 
Fraud 

Initiative 

1 0 1 

Total 80 22 58  

Page 79



Lancashire Combined Fire Authority 

Internal Audit Service monitoring report: period ended 13 November 2023 

 

  

Management of Change within LFRS  

 

Overall assurance rating Audit findings requiring action 

 

 
Extreme High Medium Low 

 

Substantial  
0 0 0 0  

See Appendix A for Rating Definitions 

 

Overall, we can provide substantial assurance on the adequacy & effectiveness of the management of the change process 

within Lancashire Fire and Rescue Service (LFRS), and how they measure benefits realised for the projects and programmes 
that have been implemented. 

Service Order Administration 130 – Project Management lays out the governance structure and the roles and responsibilities for 
those individuals who will be involved in the implementation of the project. Additionally, LFRS has developed a new guidance 
document which is intended to be used as a step-by-step guide for project managers and those who may be new to the role. All 

the staff within the Corporate Planning and Programmes team have completed the Prince 2 foundation and practitioners training. 
Historically, staff who could take on the role of Project Manager were all offered Prince 2 foundation training. However, due to 

unforeseen circumstances the courses have not been undertaken for newly promoted or appointed staff for a few years.  To 
address this the Corporate Policy and Programmes Manager is currently in the process of reviewing a one-day training course 
through the Knowledge Academy. The course is expected to be implemented before the end of the calendar year.  

Approvals and authorisation of the initial go ahead of the project and other subsequent approvals or authorisations that may be 
required whilst the project is on-going is through the Executive Board or Corporate Programme Board. Once the project has 

started, the operation and the implementation of the project is managed through regular project meetings, checkpoint reporting 
and health reports, which are then reported to the Programme Board as well as the Corporate Programme Board. The Corporate 
Policy and Programme Manager has populated a draft evaluation framework which is currently out for internal consultation. Many 

projects do complete some form of evaluation, but this will provide some consistency in approach going forward. Benefits real ised 
analysis would be picked up in both the closure report and the post implementation review report.   

P
age 80



Lancashire Combined Fire Authority 

Internal Audit Service monitoring report: period ended 13 November 2023 

 

  

LFRS was inspected by Her Majesty's Inspectorate of Constabulary and Fire & Rescue Service in July 2022 in relation to the 
service’s effectiveness, efficiency and people. The report congratulated LFRS in its excellent performance in keeping people safe 
and secure from fires and other risks. The report also highlighted and complimented the implementation of the changes that th e 

service has made since the last inspection, providing Internal Audit with assurance of the effectiveness of how the service 
identifies changes and implements them. The report considered several areas and LFRS received "Good" in all aspects that were  

reviewed, however there were two "areas of improvement" which if implemented would also benefit the "management of change" 
process. The evaluation draft framework mentioned above contributes to addressing these two actions.   

 

P
age 81



Lancashire Combined Fire Authority 

Internal Audit Service monitoring report: period ended 13 November 2023 

 

  

Audit assurance levels and residual risks Appendix A 

Note that our assurance may address the adequacy of the control framework's design, the 

effectiveness of the controls in operation, or both. The wording below addresses all of these 

options and we will refer in our reports to the assurance applicable to the scope of the work 

we have undertaken. 

 Substantial assurance: the framework of control is adequately designed and/ or 

effectively operated overall. 

 Moderate assurance: the framework of control is adequately designed and/ or 

effectively operated overall, but some action is required to enhance aspects of it 

and/ or ensure that it is effectively operated throughout. 

 Limited assurance: there are some significant weaknesses in the design and/ or 

operation of the framework of control that put the achievement of its objectives at 

risk. 

 No assurance: there are some fundamental weaknesses in the design and/ or 

operation of the framework of control that could result in failure to achieve its 

objectives. 

Classification of residual risks requiring management action  

All actions agreed with management are stated in terms of the residual risk they are designed 

to mitigate. 

Extreme residual risk: critical and urgent in that failure to address the risk could 

lead to one or more of the following: catastrophic loss of the LRFS services, loss of 

life, significant environmental damage or significant financial loss, with related 

national press coverage and substantial damage to the LRFS reputation. Remedial 

action must be taken immediately. 

High residual risk: critical in that failure to address the issue or progress the work 

would lead to one or more of the following: failure to achieve organisational 

objectives, significant disruption to the LRFS business or to users of its services, 

significant financial loss, inefficient use of resources, failure to comply with law or 

regulations, or damage to the LRFS reputation.  Remedial action must be taken 

urgently. 

Medium residual risk: failure to address the issue or progress the work could 

impact on operational objectives and should be of concern to senior management. 

Prompt specific action should be taken.  

Low residual risk: matters that individually have no major impact on achieving the 

service's objectives, but when combined with others could give cause for concern. 

Specific remedial action is desirable. 

 

 

 

 

Page 82


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	4 External Audit - Addendum to the Annual Audit Plan
	Item 4 - Addendum to the 2022-23 Audit Plan - appendix 1

	5 External Audit - Audit Findings Report
	Item 5 - External Audit Lancashire Combined Fire Audit Findings Report 2022-23

	6 External Audit - Letter of Representation
	Item 6 - App 1 Lancashire Combined Fire Authority letter of representation - draft

	7 External Audit Fees
	Item 7 - Appendix 1 2324 audit fee advised by PSAA
	Item 7 App 2 response to PSAA 2324 audit fee Consultation questions

	8 Internal Audit - Monitoring Report
	Item 8 - LCFA monitoring report_




